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MEMORANDUM  
 

  
TO:    Stephen P. McAllister, Honorable Council President  

Honorable Warwick City Council Members 
Lynn D’Abrosca, City Clerk 

 
FROM:   Tom Kravitz, Planning Director/AO 
 
DATE:   August 16, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:   Clegg Field Telecommunication Tower Relocation 

Planning Board Recommendation: Request for a Zone Change to 
allow for a 120’ Telecommunication Tower with exemptions from 
Ordinance.  

 
Assessor’s Plat 332, Assessor’s Lots 396, 397, 402, 403, 470 
176 Winter Avenue /Loring Road 

APPLICANT:     Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless 
         
ZONING DISTRICT: Open Space (OS) 
 
PROPOSED ZONE: Open Space with authorization for Use Code 611. 

Telecommunication Facility, including towers.  Telecommunication 
Tower with dimensional waivers from Warwick Zoning Ordinance, 
with exceptions from Section 506 (C)1 Location: No 
Telecommunication Facility shall be located within two miles of 
another facility.  Section 506 (C)4.i Minimum setback from 
residential and open space zoning district. 506 (C)4.ii. Minimum 
Front Yard. Tower height greater than allowed. 506 (C)6. i. Fence 
higher than allowed. 

 
 
LAND AREA:  50’ x 50’ lease area (2,500 square feet) 
 
WARD:   4 
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PROJECT SUMMARY 
The Applicant is requesting City Council approval to relocate the existing telecommunication tower 
approved by the Zoning Board of Review in 1998.  The relocation of the tower approximately 480’ to the 
southeast requires modification to the existing zoning on the site “Open Space”, to allow Use Code 611. 
Telecommunication Facility, including towers with stated dimensional waivers from the Warwick Zoning 
Ordinance.   
 
To limit proliferation of towers in the area, the City a single, 120’ tower is proposed to provide service to 
multiple carriers and City communication equipment. The new facility is designed to be structurally suitable 
for up to 3 tenants and include space for municipal public safety communications equipment.   
 
Tower Background 
In 1998, telecommunication towers were classified as a “radio tower” under the Use Table in the Zoning 
Ordinance and were authorized by a Special Use Permit (“SUP”) granted by the Warwick Zoning Board.  
In 1999, the Warwick City Council amended Table 1 of the Zoning Ordinance Use Regulations to classify 
all telecommunication facilities, including towers, be allowed only as an “Amendment (“A”) to the Zoning 
Ordinance; thereby requiring City Council approval for each individual tower.  As the Zoning Board of 
Review no longer has the authority to grant approvals related to telecommunication facilities, Verizon is 
unable to petition the Zoning Board of Review to amend the original approval to allow for the relocation.  
Therefore the process presently requires City Council consideration and authorization.   
 

FINDINGS OF THE BOARD 
At the August 9, 2023 meeting of the Warwick Planning Board, this project and proposed zoning 
amendment was found to be generally consistent with RIGL Section 45-23-30 General Purposes of Land 
Development and Subdivision Review Ordinances, Regulations and Rules, and Article 1 Purposes and 
General Statements of the City’s Development Review Regulations, and Subdivision of Land, specifically, 
RIGL Sections 45-23-60 as further detailed in the attached Decision Letter (Recorded and posted August 
10, 2023: Book 10367 Page 103-105). 
 
The Planning Board also found the proposed zoning amendment to be generally consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City of Warwick and such finding is consistent with the following purposes of 
the City’s Zoning Ordinance, as presented in Section 100, “Title and Purpose.” 

 
103.1 Promote the public health, safety and general welfare of the City. 

 
 103.3 Provides for orderly growth and development, which recognizes: 
   

E.) The availability and capacity of existing and planned public and/or private 
services and facilities; 
   

103.9  Promote safety from fire, flood and other natural or manmade disasters. 
 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION 
 

The Planning Board also provided a favorable recommendation to the Warwick City Council to 
authorize the relocation of the telecommunication facility in the Open Space District, as presented, 
with dimensional variances, and with the additional recommendation that tree and vegetation 
clearing be limited to the lease and access road area. 
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Attachments:   Planning Board Decision, Summary Memo 
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Memorandum 
 
To:  Warwick Planning Board 
 
From:   Dan Geagan, Deputy Director  
 
Date:  July 28, 2023 
 
Re:  Clegg Field Tower Relocation Background 
 
The following is a basic background and history regarding the proposed telecommunication tower 
relocation at Clegg Field in the Conimicut section of the City. 
 
A telecommunication tower 
was approved for the site in 
1998 (April 18, 1998 
Petition #’s 7950 & 7951 – 
attached) by the City of 
Warwick Zoning Board 
which has operated from 
approximately 1998 to 
present day.  The existing 
tower has served as a hybrid 
tower and light structure 
supporting the recreation 
baseball field at the 
complex.  The tower 
experienced a fire in May of 
2021 and has caused it to be 
removed.  A temporary 
tower known as a “Cell on 
Wheels” has bridged the 
service gap since the 
demolition.  The 
approximate height of the original tower was 85’.  
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All major wireless carriers expressed a need for a tower in this area; therefore, to limit 
proliferation of towers, the City solicited proposals (RFP#2023-066)  from both tower companies 
and telecommunications providers with the intent that one vendor constructs a single tower 
sufficient to provide service to multiple carriers and City communication equipment. The new 
facility is designed to be structurally suitable for up to 3 tenants and include space for municipal 
public safety communications equipment.   
 
City Council Bid Award 
The Warwick City Council formally awarded RFP #2023-066 to Cellco Partnership (d/b/a Verizon  
Wireless) in October of 2022 (attached).    
 
Approval Process 
In 1998, telecommunication towers were classified as a “radio tower” under the Use Table in the 
Zoning Ordinance and were authorized by a Special Use Permit (“SUP”) granted by the Warwick 
Zoning Board.  In 1999, the Warwick City Council amended Table 1 of the Zoning Ordinance Use 
Regulations to classify all telecommunication facilities, including towers, be allowed only as an 
“Amendment (“A”) to the Zoning Ordinance; thereby requiring City Council approval for each 
individual tower.  As the Zoning Board of Review no longer has the authority to grant approvals 
related to telecommunication facilities, Verizon is unable to petition the Zoning Board of Review 
to amend the original approval to allow for the relocation.  The process now requires development 
plan review and recommendation by the Planning Board, prior to City Council consideration.   
 
Summary 
Therefore the travel of this application is summarized as follows: 

• April 18, 1998:   Zoning Board of Review Approval 
• December 1999:  Ordinance Amendment Requiring Council approval for Towers 
• May/June 2021:   Tower removed,  Cell on Wheels used as a temporary measure 
• June 2022:    RFP Issued 
• October 17, 2022:  City Council Bid Award to Verizon Wireless 
• August 2023:   Planning Board Review – Tower Relocation 
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Former (85’)       Proposed Tower (120’) 

     
 










	APPLICANT:     Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless



